

**AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF
THE STANFORD DAILY PUBLISHING CORPORATION
A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation**
Revision dated June 26, 2018

**ARTICLE I
OFFICES**

Section 1.

Location of Offices. The principal office of The Stanford Daily Publishing Corporation (the “Corporation”) shall be located on the campus of Leland Stanford Junior University (“Stanford University”), in the County of Santa Clara, State of California. The Corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the County of Santa Clara, State of California, as the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board” or the “Board of Directors”) may determine.

Section 2.

Relocation of Principal Office. The principal office of the Corporation may be relocated outside the Stanford University campus only upon an amendment to these Bylaws by a vote of the Members of the Corporation.

**ARTICLE II
MEMBERS**

Section 1.

One Class of Membership. The Corporation shall have a single class of membership. The rights and privileges of each Member shall be equal except as otherwise set forth in these Bylaws. All membership shall be non-assessable and non-transferable.

Section 2.

Members. The Members of the Corporation shall consist of the individuals comprising the Editorial Staff, as identified on the Editorial Staff List prepared in accordance with Section 2(a)(1) of this Article II, and the individuals comprising the Business Staff, as identified on the Business Staff List prepared in accordance with Section 2(b)(1) of this Article II.

- (a) *Editorial Staff.* The Editorial Staff shall consist of those individuals specified on an Editorial Staff List prepared by the Editor-in-Chief and Managing Editors (the heads of the Corporation’s editorial departments, as selected by the Editor-in-Chief in accordance with the criteria set forth in Section 2(a)(1) of this Article II and approved by the Board (the “Editorial Staff List”); said List shall be submitted to the Board for approval at the Board’s regularly scheduled meeting prior to each meeting of the Members of the Corporation and posted in the office for others to review no less than one (1) week in advance of any such approval by the Board.

Any individual who has contributed to the work of the Corporation during the period described in Section 2(a)(1) may challenge an individual’s exclusion or inclusion on the proposed Editorial Staff List at least two (2) business days before the list is presented to the Board for approval. Disputes shall be resolved by a vote of the Managing Editors and the Editor-in-Chief, followed by final approval from the Board.

- (1) *Criteria.* The Editorial Staff List shall include any individual who:

- (i) has been working for the Corporation for at least two calendar months in the current or most recent fall, winter or spring academic quarter; and
- (ii) has, during that period, demonstrated continued interest and commitment through meeting attendance and/or contributions to the operations of the Corporation, which may include, but are not limited to: editing, writing, photography, graphic design, videography, or other comparable work, to be determined at the discretion of the Managing Editors and Editor-in-Chief.

(b) *Business Staff.* The Business Staff shall consist of those individuals specified on a Business Staff List prepared by the Editor-in-Chief in accordance with the criteria set forth in Section 2(b)(1) of this Article II and approved by the Board (the “*Business Staff List*”); said List shall be submitted to the Board at the Board’s regularly scheduled meeting prior to each meeting of the Members of the Corporation and posted in the office for others to review no less than one (1) week in advance of any such approval by the Board.

(1) *Criteria.* The Business Staff List shall include any individual who:

- (i) has been working at the Corporation at least two (2) months prior to the date of the approval of the Business Staff List by the Board; and
- (ii) does not already appear on the Editorial Staff List; and
- (iii) has worked for an average of five (5) or more hours of work per week since beginning work at the Corporation.

(c) *Appeal.* Any person may appeal to the Board in order to add or delete any name to or from the proposed Editorial Staff List or Business Staff List before an election is held. The Board may, by unanimous written consent, or a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Directors present at a duly called and held meeting at which a quorum is present, add or delete any name to or from the Business Staff List.

Section 3.

Independence of Staff. Under no circumstances shall the Board specify the duties or salary of any Editorial Staff or Business Staff Member, except those of the Editor-in-Chief and the Chief Operating Officer.

Section 4.

Liability of Members. No Member of the Corporation shall be personally liable for any of the debts, liabilities, or obligations of the Corporation. The Corporation shall indemnify each of the directors and officers to the full extent of the law and provide for directors and officers insurance.

ARTICLE III MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1.

Regular Meetings. There shall be no fewer than two (2) regular meetings of the Members of the Corporation each fiscal year in January and May on dates designated by the Board. Each meeting shall be held for the following purposes:

(a) *January*

- (1) Electing the Editor-in-Chief to serve for the spring volume, February 1 to June 30; and
- (2) Conducting such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting.

(b) *May*

- (1) Electing the Editor-in-Chief to serve for the fall volume, July 1 to January 31; and
- (2) Electing the Editorial Staffer At-Large Director (as defined in Section 1(d) of Article IV) and the Student At-Large Director (as defined in Section 1(e) of Article IV) to the Board to their respective yearly terms; and
- (3) Electing the Professional Directors (as defined in Section 1 of Article IV) to their respective three-year terms; and
- (4) Conducting such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting.

Section 2.

Special Meetings. Special meetings of Members for any lawful purpose may be called at any time by the Board, or by the President, or by five percent (5%) or more of the Members.

Section 3.

Notice of Meetings. Notice stating the place, day, and hour of any meeting shall be made by printed notice in The Stanford Daily, published not less than three (3) times, with at least one (1) such notice being published not less than five (5) days prior to said meeting.

Section 4.

Quorum. The participation of members holding not less than one-third (1/3) of the votes that may be cast in any meeting shall constitute a quorum for such meeting. In the absence of a quorum, any meeting of Members may be adjourned from time to time by a majority of the Members present, but no other business may be transacted.

Section 5.

Voting at Meetings.

- (a) *Generally.* Except as set forth below, each Member shall have one (1) vote. Cumulative voting shall not be authorized, and Members shall not be permitted to vote by proxy. However, a Member absent from any meeting may cast his or her vote by an absentee ballot consisting of a writing signed by him or her and delivered to the Corporation prior to or at the time of the vote. Online voting may be authorized by the Election Commission, which is described in Section 2(b)(6) of Article V.
- (b) *Voting Rights in Elections.* All voting will be conducted by secret ballot; no Member other than each of the following shall have the right to one (1) vote on any election or other matter properly brought before the Members of the Corporation:
 - (1) *Editorial Staff.* Each member of the Editorial Staff listed on the Editorial Staff List most recently approved by the Board; and
 - (2) *Business Staff.* Each member of the Business Staff listed on the Business Staff List most recently approved by the Board.

Section 6.

Presiding Officer; Rules. Meetings of the Members shall be presided over by the President of the Corporation. Meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order, as such rules may be revised from time to time, insofar as such rules are not in conflict with these Bylaws, with the Articles of Incorporation, or with law.

ARTICLE IV DIRECTORS

Section 1.

Number of Directors and Qualifications. The Corporation shall have nine (9) Directors (the "Directors"), who shall collectively constitute the Board of Directors (the "Board" or the "Board of Directors"). Each Director must be at least 18 years of age at the time of his or her election. The Board shall consist of the following nine members:

- (a) The then-serving Editor-in-Chief of the Corporation (the "EIC Director");
- (b) The then-serving Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation (the "COO Director");
- (c) The then-serving Vice President of Sales of the Corporation (the "VPS Director");
- (d) An Editorial Staff member of the Corporation with academic standing of at least one (1) academic year (three (3) academic quarters) at the time of his or her election (the "Editorial Staffer At-Large

- Director”);*
- (e) A student of Stanford University who is currently registered at the time of his or her election (the “*Student At-Large Director*”);
 - (f) An individual having professional journalistic knowledge or experience (the “*Journalism Director*”);
 - (g) An individual having professional business knowledge or experience (the “*Business Director*”);
 - (h) An individual having professional legal knowledge or experience who is, if possible, a member of the California State Bar Association (the “*Legal Director*”); and
 - (i) A member of the Stanford University faculty or staff (the “*Faculty/Staff Director*”).

Section 2.

Change in the Number of Directors. The number of Directors may be changed only by amendment of the Articles of Incorporation or by amendment or repeal of this Bylaw and adoption of a new Bylaw by the Members.

Section 3.

Election of Directors. The Editor-in-Chief, Chief Operating Officer, and Vice President of Sales shall each automatically become a member of the Board upon assuming his or her respective office. Each of the remaining six (6) Directors shall be elected by a majority vote of the Members of the Corporation voting in a meeting of the Corporation, each Member having one (1) vote for each Director to be elected.

Section 4.

Terms of Office. The terms of office for Directors (a) - (c) shall be concurrent with the terms of the corresponding positions as Editor-in-Chief, Chief Operating Officer, and Vice President of Sales. The terms of office for Directors (d) - (e) (the “*At-Large Directors*”) shall be approximately one (1) year from the Corporation’s May meeting to the Corporation’s meeting the following May. The terms of office for Directors (f) - (i) shall be approximately three (3) years, commencing on the date of their election at the May Members’ meeting. Directors (f) – (i) shall step down for at least one (1) term after serving two (2) complete consecutive terms, and new board members shall be elected to fill that position. Directors (f) – (i) can be re-appointed to a second consecutive term by an all company vote.

Section 5.

Role of Directors. The Directors shall exercise the powers of the Corporation, control its property, and conduct its affairs as they deem best, except as otherwise provided by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws.

Section 6.

Vacancies. Vacancies on the Board shall exist upon the death, resignation, or termination of membership of any Director. Vacancies shall be filled by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of those Directors then serving, through less than a quorum, or by the sole remaining Director. Each Director so elected shall serve until the next meeting of the Corporation, when an election shall be held to elect a Director to serve for the balance of the term of any Director so replaced.

Section 7.

Board Chair. The Directors shall elect a Chair from among the members of the Board, other than the Editor-in-Chief or the Chief Operating Officer, by majority vote of those present. The Chair shall serve for one (1) year and shall be eligible for reelection. The Chair shall retain his or her voting rights as a member of the Board. The Chair’s only added function shall be to provide for an agenda for meetings of the Board (which duty the Chair may delegate) and preside over such meetings.

Section 8.

Board Vice Chair. The Directors shall elect a Vice Chair from among the members of the Board, by majority vote of those present, to serve in the Chair’s absence. The Vice Chair shall serve for one (1) year and shall be eligible for reelection. The Vice Chair shall retain his or her voting rights as a member of the Board.

Section 9.

Quorum. A majority of the Directors then serving shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except as a greater number is required by these Bylaws.

Section 10.

Meetings. The Board shall meet at regular intervals, at least once during each of the months of October, November, January, February, April, May, and June. Special Meetings shall be held whenever three (3) Board members so request. Written notice of all meetings shall be delivered by mail, e-mail, facsimile, or personally to all Board members at least three (3) days before any meeting. A special meeting shall be held within five (5) days after a request, with the same notice as above specified being required.

Section 11.

Action by Unanimous Written Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board under any provision of law may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board then serving shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such written consent shall be filed with the corporate records. Such action by written consent shall have the same force as a unanimous vote of such Directors.

Section 12.

Rules. Meetings of Directors shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order, as such rules may be revised from time to time, insofar as such rules are not in conflict with these Bylaws, with the Articles of Incorporation, or with law.

Section 13.

No Remuneration of Directors. Directors shall receive no fees or remuneration for serving as Board members or attending meetings of the Board.

Section 14.

Removal of Directors. Each of the Directors may, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Directors then serving, be removed from the Board if in the opinion of the Board, as expressed by their own action, they believe the Board member has repeatedly taken action inconsistent with the purposes of the Corporation as defined in the Articles of Incorporation.

Section 15.

No Personal Liability of Directors. None of the Directors, individually or jointly, shall be personally liable for any of the debts, liabilities, or obligations of the Corporation.

Section 16.

Meeting Attendance. Directors are expected to attend all regular Board meetings in person or electronically. If a Director misses more than one out of four consecutive Meetings, such action will be considered a voluntary resignation from the board. The Board by two-thirds (2/3) vote may make an exception to this clause due to special circumstances. In person attendance is preferred.

ARTICLE V **OFFICERS**

Section 1.

Officers of the Corporation. The Corporation shall have three (3) Officers: (i) the Editor-in-Chief/President/Chief Executive Officer ("EIC"), (ii) the Chief Operating Officer/Business Manager/Treasurer ("COO"), and (iii) the Secretary. Officer positions (i) and (ii) may not be held concurrently by a single individual, although (i) and (iii) or (ii) and (iii) may be held concurrently by a single individual if agreed to by the Board.

Section 2.

Editor-in-Chief.

(a) *Powers and Duties.*

- (1) *Content.* All the content of the Corporation's publications, including The Stanford Daily, other print publications of the Corporation, and any of its Web sites (collectively, the "Publications") shall be controlled solely by the Editor-in-Chief.
- (2) *Policies.* The Editor-in-Chief shall have the sole responsibility for defining policies relating to the following areas for the Corporation and its publications: guidelines for determining the acceptability of print and online advertisements; the publishing of corrections, retractions, and apologies; the disclosure of unpublished editorial material; and promises of confidentiality. Prior to assuming office, an incoming Editor-in-Chief shall present his or her policies to the Board of Directors before his or her volume begins, as outlined in Section 2(b)(4) of this Article V.
- (3) *Day-to-Day Operations.* The Editor-in-Chief shall be the final authority on all day-to-day operations of the Corporation.
- (4) *Responsibilities.* The Editor-in-Chief shall be responsible for:
 - (i) The entire content of the Corporation's publications. Specifically, he or she shall be responsible for ensuring high-quality news, sports, features, entertainment, opinions, and other sections of The Stanford Daily and the various sections of any other Publication;
 - (ii) Recruiting and training a high-quality Editorial Staff;
 - (iii) Long-range planning of the entire operations of the Corporation;
 - (iv) The relationship of the Corporation with the readership of each Publication; and
 - (v) Carrying out the purposes of the Corporation as outlined in the Articles of Incorporation.
- (5) *Reports to the Board.* The Editor-in-Chief shall report to the Board at each meeting of the Board, outlining his or her major actions and plans and the general status of the Corporation.
- (6) *Summer Editor.* The Editor in Chief elected to serve the fall volume (July 1st through January 31st) shall appoint a Summer Editor to serve as editor of The Stanford Daily for the summer volume (July 1st through September 15th). Such Editor-in-Chief may appoint himself or herself as this Summer Editor. No individual shall be entitled to serve as the President of the Corporation solely by virtue of his or her appointment to serve as the Summer Editor.

(b) *Election.*

- (1) *Staff Membership of Candidates.* Each candidate for the position of Editor-in-Chief must have maintained active standing on either the Editorial Staff List or the Business Staff List for two (2) volumes, although the volumes need not be consecutive.
- (2) *Registration of Candidates.* Each candidate for the position of Editor-in-Chief must be registered as a student at Stanford University within one (1) of the last two (2) quarters and be eligible to register in the quarter that the election is held. He or she need not remain registered throughout his or her term of office.
- (3) *Deadline for Nominations.* The Board of Directors shall set a deadline for nominations for Editor-in-Chief not less than three (3) weeks before the beginning of the next Editor-in-Chief's term. Each candidate must post a letter of intent briefly describing his or her interest in the position, qualifications, and relevant experiences, by a time and at a location specified by the Election Commission.

- (4) *Platform and Policies.* Each candidate for the position of Editor-in-Chief must post for the Members and provide to the Board his or her platform and proposed editorial policies, as outlined in Section 2(a)(2) of this Article V, at least one (1) week prior to the Editor-in-Chief election.
- (5) *Election Procedures.* The election shall be conducted by secret ballot and the Editor-in-Chief shall be elected by a majority of votes cast by the Members eligible to vote as described in Section 2 of Article II. A third (1/3) of those eligible to vote shall constitute a quorum, which shall be required to conduct such election, as described in Section 4 of Article III. If no candidate receives a majority of the votes out of those cast by Members eligible to vote, a runoff election shall be held the following day between the two (2) candidates receiving the highest total number of votes. An individual elected to serve as the Editor-in-Chief shall automatically become the President of the Corporation upon taking his or her office as the Editor-in-Chief.
- (6) *Election Commission.* The Election Commission, comprised of the then-serving Editor-in-Chief, the then-serving Chief Operating Officer, and the then-serving Vice President of Sales, will, by a majority of its members, set the specific rules for each Editor-in-Chief election as well as for any other vote on a matter properly brought before the Members, including how the vote shall be conducted and all other campaign rules not otherwise specified in these Bylaws or by the Board. However, no individual may serve on the Commission while concurrently running as a candidate for an elected position. The Board, by a majority vote, will designate a substitute member as necessary if the Editor-in-Chief, Chief Operating Officer, or Vice President of Sales is to be a candidate in an upcoming election. The Commission must submit its rules for the election to the Board at least two (2) weeks prior to the election.
- (7) *Replacement upon Resignation, Recall, or Removal.* If the Editor-in-Chief intends to resign, a letter of resignation should be provided as soon as possible to the Board Chair. Should the Editor-in-Chief resign or be recalled or removed, the Chief Operating Officer shall immediately appoint an interim Editor-in-Chief, after consulting with the Editorial Staff. The Board shall then promptly appoint a new Editor-in-Chief to serve the remainder of the former Editor-in-Chief's term.

(c) *Term of Office.*

- (1) The Editor-in-Chief shall serve for half the fiscal year. The fall volume term shall be from July 1st to January 31st, and the spring volume term shall be from February 1st to June 30th.
- (2) A person may serve no more than two (2) terms as Editor-in-Chief.

(d) *Recall and Removal.*

- (1) *Recall by Editorial Staff.* The Editorial Staff, through a written petition signed by at least 20 percent (20%) of the individuals shown on the most recently approved Editorial Staff List, may call for an election recall of the Editor-in-Chief. At such an election recall, provided that quorum is met, a majority of the Members present of the Editorial Staff may vote to remove the Editor-in-Chief.
- (2) *Removal by the Board.* The Board of Directors may remove the Editor-in-Chief by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Directors then serving, the Editor-in-Chief not included, at a duly called and held meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present, if they determine that the Editor-in-Chief has taken action inconsistent with the purposes of the Corporation as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

- (3) The removal of an individual from the office of Editor-in-Chief, whether by the Editorial Staff or by the Board, shall automatically and immediately remove such individual from (1) the office of the President of the Corporation, and (2) the Board as the EIC Director.

Section 3.

Chief Operating Officer.

(a) *Powers and Duties.*

- (1) *Financial Activities.* The Chief Operating Officer shall be responsible for all sales and other financial activities of the Corporation, subject only to the authority of the Board and the Editor-in-Chief as outlined in these Bylaws.
- (2) *Business Operations.* The Chief Operating Officer shall have full discretion to organize and run the business operations of the Corporation, subject only to such restrictions as are specifically outlined in these Bylaws or as the Board may provide from time to time.
- (3) *Business Staff.* The Chief Operating Officer shall have full discretion to employ and/or dismiss Business Staff members, subject to salary, commission, and other terms of employment as shall be annually recommended by the Chief Operating Officer and approved by the Board.
- (4) *Day-to-Day Operations.* The Chief Operating Officer is subject to the direction of the Editor-in-Chief on any matter involving the day-to-day publishing or other incidental activities of the Corporation, provided that the Chief Operating Officer shall have the right to appeal to the Board on matters of serious dispute.
- (5) *Certain Limits.* Nothing in this Section 3(a) gives the Chief Operating Officer the power to prevent or hinder the Editor in Chief in the following activities:
- (i) Publishing the issues of The Stanford Daily or any other Publication permitted by these Bylaws and approved by the Board; or
 - (ii) Increasing or decreasing the number of pages or circulation size of any particular issue of The Stanford Daily or any other Publication of the Corporation.

(b) *Selection.*

- (1) *Selection Committee.* An individual shall be selected COO-Elect, who shall automatically become the Corporation's Chief Operating Officer, as well as Treasurer, for the immediately following fiscal year. The COO-Elect shall be selected by a committee composed of the then-serving COO, the then-serving Vice President of Sales, two (2) other Business Staff members to be chosen by the COO, and the then-serving Editor-in-Chief. No individual may be a member of the Selection Committee if he or she is a candidate for the position of COO-Elect.
- (2) *Timing.* In January, the Selection Committee shall announce a vacancy, and it shall hold interviews with potential candidates as early as the month of February. The selection shall be made no later than the last week of April. Following selection, the COO-Elect may serve as the Associate COO during a time period of the Business Manager's choosing before the Business Manager-Elect assumes the position of Business Manager.
- (c) *Replacement upon Resignation or Dismissal.* If the Chief Operating Officer intends to resign, a letter of resignation should be provided as soon as possible to the Board Chair. Should the COO resign or be dismissed, the Editor-in-Chief shall appoint an interim COO, who shall also automatically assume the office of Treasurer, and the Board shall form a new Selection Committee to appoint a COO for the remainder of the term.

- (d) *Dismissal.* The Board of Directors may remove the Chief Operating Officer by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Directors then serving, the COO not included, at a duly called and held meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present, for good cause, including but not limited to any breach by the Chief Operating Officer of a duty, fiduciary or otherwise, imposed by virtue of the office or position on the Board. The good cause for any such removal shall be placed in the written minutes of the meeting and be made known in writing to the Chief Operating Officer so removed.
- (e) *Term of Office.* The Chief Operating Officer shall serve a 12-month term running from July 1st to June 30th. A person may serve no more than two (2) terms as Business Manager.

Section 4.

Secretary.

- (a) *Powers and Duties.* The Board shall outline the Secretary's powers and duties.
- (b) *Selection.* The Board of Directors shall appoint a Secretary upon a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members of the Board then serving, at a duly held meeting.
- (c) *Term of Office.* The Board of Directors shall determine the Secretary's term of office.
- (d) *Dismissal.* The Board of Directors may remove the Secretary by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members then serving, at a duly held meeting.

**ARTICLE VI
FISCAL YEAR**

Section 1.

Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on July 1st of each year and end on June 30th of each year.

**ARTICLE VII
CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, AND FUNDS**

Section 1.

Contracts. The Board may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation, in addition to the officers so authorized by these Bylaws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of the Corporation and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 2.

Checks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation, and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board.

Section 3.

Deposits. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositaries as the Board may select.

Section 4.

Gifts. The Board may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, or device for the general purposes or for any special purposes of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VIII **BOOKS AND RECORDS**

Section 1.

Books and Records. The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its members, Board, and committees having any authority of the Board of Directors, and shall keep at the registered or principal office of the Corporation.

ARTICLE IX **MISCELLANEOUS**

Section 1.

Effectiveness. These Bylaws shall become effective immediately upon their adoption of the Board of Directors.

Section 2.

Amendment or Repeal. Subject to any provisions of applicable law to the amendment of bylaws of nonprofit corporations, these Bylaws may be altered and may be repealed and new Bylaws adopted as follows:

- (a) *By the Board.* Subject to the rights of the Members provided in these Bylaws or by law and the limitations set forth below, new Bylaws may be adopted or these Bylaws may be amended or repealed by approval of a majority vote of the Board; provided, however, that the Board may not, without the approval of the Members, specify or change any Bylaw that would:
 - (1) Fix or change the number of authorized Directors;
 - (2) Fix or change the minimum or maximum number of Directors;
 - (3) Change from a fixed number of Directors to a variable number of Directors or vice versa;
 - (4) Increase or extend the terms of Directors;
 - (5) Allow any Director to hold office by designation or selection rather than by election by the Members;
 - (6) Increase the quorum threshold for meetings of Members;
 - (7) Repeal, restrict, create, expand, or otherwise change proxy rights;
 - (8) Authorize cumulative voting by Members;
 - (9) Materially and adversely affect the Members' right to voting; or
 - (10) Extend the term of a Director beyond that for which the Director was elected.
- (b) *By the Members.* New Bylaws may be adopted, or these Bylaws may be amended or repealed, by approval of the Members; provided, however, that if the Corporation has more than one (1) class of voting Members, any amendment that would materially and adversely affect the rights of a class as to voting or transfer in a manner different than it would another class must be approved by the Members of the materially and adversely affected class. Any Bylaw that requires a higher vote by the Members than otherwise required by law may not be altered, amended, or repealed except by that higher vote. No amendment may extend the term of a Director beyond that for which the Director was elected. Any provisions of these Bylaws providing for the designation or selection, rather than election, of any Director may be adopted, amended, or repealed only by approval of the Members, subject to the consent of the person or persons entitled to designate or select such Director.

Section 3.

Effectiveness of Amendments. Any amendment to these Bylaws shall become effective immediately upon its adoption unless the Board of Directors or the Members of the Corporation, in adopting such amendment, provide that it is to become effective at a later date.